

SENATE FILE 22

SENATE FILE 22

AN ACT to create W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704; to amend W.S. 39-6-701; and to repeal W.S. 39-6-701(a)(iii) relating to home insulation grants for low income, senior citizens and disabled persons; providing for grants and specifying a purpose; providing qualifications and grant application procedure; authorizing subgrantees to perform and contract for home insulation installation; authorizing the governor to promulgate implementing rules and regulations; limiting the amount of grants to \$1,300.00; providing for an appropriation; providing that funds appropriated to the governor's budget for energy conservation grants shall be administered and expended in accordance with the provisions of this act; requiring public notice of a summary of this act; and providing for an effective date.



Introduced by:

| DATE | ACTION | DATE | ACTION |
|---------|---|-------------|--|
| 2/9/82 | Introduced 25 days ago Read first time Referred to Com. No. 4 Delivered to Printing Com. Returned from Printing Delivered to Com. No. 4 Page 25 Date 5 Feb 82 | 2/22 | sent to House READ FIRST TIME FEB 22 1982 REFERRED TO COM. NO. 2 DELIVERED TO COM. NO. 2 |
| 2/11/82 | STANDING COMM. REPORT DO PASS | FEB 25 1982 | RETURNED Recommended Amend and Do Pass 5/24 Date on General File |
| 2/11/82 | RE-REPORT TO COM. NO. 2 | | |
| 2/12/82 | STANDING COMM. REPORT AMEND AND DO PASS | | |
| 2/12/82 | RE-REPORT TO COM. NO. 4 | | |
| 2/17/82 | STANDING COMM. REPORT DO PASS | | |
| 2/18/82 | CONSIDERED IN COM. OF WHOLE ADOPTED SF22551-A STANDING COMM. AMEND. ADOPTED SF22552-A DO PASS | | |
| 2/19/82 | READ SECOND TIME | | |
| 2/20/82 | READ THIRD TIME AMENDED AS FOLLOWS SF22553-A AMEND 30 1 amended 1 absent 40 | | |
| 2/20 | SENT TO HOUSE ENGROSSED | | |

CONTINUED ON BACK

5022 Luba Date 2/9/82

Roll Call of the Senate
of the FORTY-SIXTH LEGISLATURE
of Wyoming

| | Ayes | Noes | Excused | Absent |
|-----------------------|------|------|---------|--------|
| 31 ARNEY | ✓ | | | |
| 30 BOYLE | ✓ | | | |
| 29 BUSSART | ✓ | | | |
| 28 CHRISTENSEN | ✓ | | | |
| 27 SUNDALL | | | | |
| 26 DAILY | ✓ | | | |
| 25 DOWNING | ✓ | | | |
| 24 FRISBY | | ✓ | | |
| 23 GEIS | ✓ | | | |
| 22 HICKEY | ✓ | | | |
| 21 LARSON, R. | ✓ | | | |
| 20 MAJHANOVICH | ✓ | | | |
| 19 MOORE | ✓ | | | |
| 18 NICHOLAS | ✓ | | | |
| 17 NICHOLS | ✓ | | | |
| 16 NORRIS | ✓ | | | |
| 15 NORTHRUP | ✓ | | | |
| 14 PARKS -GADDIS | ✓ | | | |
| 13 PECK | ✓ | | | |
| 12 PROFFIT | ✓ | | | |
| 11 RECTOR | ✓ | | | |
| 10 SADLER | ✓ | | | |
| 9 SEDAR | ✓ | | | |
| 8 STAFFORD | ✓ | | | |
| 7 STROOCK | | ✓ | | |
| 6 TAGGART | ✓ | | | |
| 5 TRUE | | ✓ | | |
| 4 TURNER | | ✓ | | |
| 3 YOUTZ | | ✓ | | |
| 2 ZIMMER | ✓ | | | |
| 1 MR. PRESIDENT | ✓ | | | |

| | | |
|---------|---------|-----------|
| PRESENT | AYES | <u>25</u> |
| | NOES | <u>5</u> |
| | EXCUSED | <u>0</u> |
| | ABSENT | <u>0</u> |
| | TOTAL | <u>30</u> |

4522

3-2

Date 2/30/82

Roll Call of the Senate

of the FORTY-SIXTH LEGISLATURE

of Wyoming

| | Ayes | Noes | Excused | Absent |
|-----------------------|------|------|---------|--------|
| 31 ARNEY | ✓ | | | |
| 30 BOYLE | | ✓ | | |
| 29 BUSSART | | ✓ | | |
| 28 CHRISTENSEN | ✓ | | | |
| 27 SUNDALL | | | | |
| 26 DAILY | | ✓ | | |
| 25 DOWNING | ✓ | | | |
| 24 FRISBY | ✓ | | | |
| 23 GEIS | ✓ | | | |
| 22 HICKEY | | ✓ | | |
| 21 LARSON, R. | ✓ | | | |
| 20 MAJHANOVICH | ✓ | | | |
| 19 MOORE | ✓ | | | |
| 18 NICHOLAS | ✓ | | | |
| 17 NICHOLS | ✓ | ✓ | | |
| 16 NORRIS | | ✓ | | |
| 15 NORTHRUP | ✓ | | | |
| 14 PARKS-GADDIS | ✓ | | | |
| 13 PECK | ✓ | | | |
| 12 PROFFIT | | | ✓ | |
| 11 RECTOR | | ✓ | | |
| 10 SADLER | | ✓ | | |
| 9 SEDAR | | ✓ | | |
| 8 STAFFORD | ✓ | | | |
| 7 STROOCK | ✓ | | | |
| 6 TAGGART | ✓ | | | |
| 5 TRUE | ✓ | | | |
| 4 TURNER | ✓ | | | |
| 3 YOUTZ | ✓ | | | |
| 2 ZIMMER | ✓ | | | |
| 1 MR. PRESIDENT | ✓ | | | |

PRESENT

AYES 20

NOES 9

EXCUSED 1

ABSENT 0

TOTAL 30

House of Intro
To Com No. _____
Stand Report Do _____ Amd _____ Not _____
Com Whole Do _____ Amd _____ Not _____
2nd Reading Amd _____
3rd Reading Amd _____ Pass _____ Fail _____

Second House
To Com No. _____
Stand Report Do _____ Amd _____ Not _____
Com Whole Do _____ Amd _____ Not _____
2nd Reading Amd _____
3rd Reading Amd _____ Pass _____ Fail _____

INTRODUCED

1982

STATE OF WYOMING

82LSO-150.01

SENATE FILE NO. 22

Home insulation grants.

Sponsored by: Senator CUNDALL



A BILL

for

1 AN ACT to create W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704; to amend W.S.
2 39-6-701; and to repeal W.S. 39-6-701(a)(iii) relating to
3 home insulation grants for senior citizens and disabled
4 persons; providing for grants payable from the general
5 fund and specifying a purpose; providing qualifications
6 and grant application procedure; authorizing subgrantees
7 to contract for home insulation installation; authorizing
8 the governor to promulgate implementing rules and regula-
9 tions; limiting the amount of grants to \$1,300.00; provid-
10 ing for an appropriation; requiring public notice of a
11 summary of this act; and providing for an effective date.

1 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming:

2 Section 1. W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704 are created to
3 read:

4 39-6-703. Home insulation grants; purpose; payable
5 from general fund; application; duties of energy conser-
6 vation office; governor to promulgate rules and regula-
7 tions; generally.

8 (a) Grants provided by W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704
9 are available to qualified persons for purposes of insu-
10 lating their homes against adverse weather conditions,
11 reducing the burden of rising utility costs and conserving
12 energy resources. Grants are payable from the general
13 fund.

14 (b) Qualified persons shall apply to the county
15 assessor in the county of their residence for home
16 insulation grants, certifying age, residency, disability,
17 if any, marital status and income under oath on forms pre-
18 scribed by the Wyoming energy conservation office. The
19 county assessor shall determine whether a person applying
20 owns a home in the county and certify the names of quali-
21 fied persons to the state energy conservation office.

1 (c) The energy conservation office shall:

2 (i) Maintain contact with subgrantees that
3 agree to provide services under W.S. 39-6-701 through
4 39-6-704;

5 (ii) Certify the names of qualified persons
6 received from the county assessors to a subgrantee in the
7 area in which the person resides;

8 (iii) Upon receipt of certification from a
9 subgrantee that work is in compliance with the contract,
10 authorize payment of the contractor and the subgrantee by
11 the state treasurer.

12 (d) The governor in consultation with the energy
13 conservation office may promulgate rules and regulations
14 to implement W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704.

15 39-6-704. Duties of subgrantees; generally; contract
16 limitations.

17 (a) Upon receipt of names of qualified persons from
18 the energy conservation office, a subgrantee agreeing to
19 provide services under this article shall:

20 (i) Inspect the person's home and determine
21 the most cost effective means of adequately insulating it;

1 (ii) Prepare job specifications for installa-
2 tion of such insulation;

3 (iii) Advertise and accept bids for and award
4 and administer contracts for such installation;

5 (iv) Inspect the installation and determine
6 compliance with job specifications;

7 (v) If the installation complies with job
8 specifications, certify compliance to the energy conser-
9 vation office.

10 (b) Contracts awarded under paragraph (a)(iii) of
11 this section shall have the following limitations:

12 (i) A subgrantee shall receive not more than
13 five percent (5%) of the contract price for its services;

14 (ii) The contract price and the amount
15 received by the subgrantee under paragraph (b)(i) of this
16 section shall not exceed one thousand three hundred
17 dollars (\$1,300.00).

18 Section 2. W.S. 39-6-701 is amended to read:

19 39-6-701. Definitions.

1 (a) As used in ~~this-article~~ W.S. 39-6-701 THROUGH
2 39-6-704:

3 (i) "Income" includes wages, receipts from
4 earnings, rents, interest, dividends, annuities, pensions,
5 alimony, support payments, public assistance payments,
6 federal social security payments, veteran's benefits, dis-
7 ability payments, and unemployment compensation;

8 (ii) "INSULATION" MEANS ANY INSULATING DEVICE
9 INCLUDING CAULKING AND WEATHER STRIPPING;

10 (iii) "QUALIFIED PERSON" MEANS A RESIDENT WHO
11 OWNS AND OCCUPIES A HOME AND WHO QUALIFIES FOR A REFUND OF
12 TAXES UNDER W.S. 39-6-702(a);

13 ~~(iii)~~(iv) "Resident" means a person who has
14 been a resident of Wyoming and domiciled within Wyoming
15 for a period of not less than one (1) year and who has not
16 claimed residency elsewhere for any purpose for ~~said~~ one
17 (1) year ~~period~~ immediately preceding the date of applica-
18 tion for a refund under ~~this-article~~ W.S. 39-6-701 THROUGH
19 39-6-704;

20 ~~(iii)~~--"This-article"--means-W.S.--39-6-701--and
21 39-6-702;

1 (v) "SUBGRANTEE" MEANS A COMMUNITY ACTION
2 AGENCY DEFINED IN 42 U.S.C. 2790 FOR THE PURPOSE OF
3 IMPLEMENTING A WEATHERIZATION PROGRAM UNDER 42 U.S.C.
4 6863;

5 ~~{iv}~~(vi) "Totally disabled" means a person
6 nineteen (19) years of age or older whose physical or
7 mental condition permanently prevents the person from per-
8 forming any substantial gainful employment.

9 Section 3. W.S. 39-6-701(a)(iii) is repealed.

10 Section 4. There is appropriated from the general
11 fund two million four hundred thousand dollars
12 (\$2,400,000.00) or as much thereof as may be necessary to
13 carry out the provisions of this act.

Section 5. Each county assessor shall promptly publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the county a notice to be furnished immediately by the energy conservation office, summarizing W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704.

18 Section 6. This act is effective June 1, 1982.

19 (END)

SF22S31/A

- Page 1-line 3 After "for" insert "low income,".
 Page 1-line 7 After "to" insert "perform and".
- Page 3-line 8 After "Upon" delete "receipt of".
 Page 3-line 9 After "the" insert "job specification".
 Page 3-line 10 After "payment" delete "of the contractor
 and" and insert "to".
 Page 3-line 21 After "it" insert "within a maximum cost of
 one thousand three hundred dollars
 (\$1,300.00)".
- Page 4-line 6 After "specifications" insert ", securing
 signature of resident accepting perfor-
 mance".
- Page 4-line 7 Delete "If" and insert "When".
 Page 4-line 10 After "(b)" delete the balance of the line.
 Page 4-line 11 Delete entirely and insert "In return for
 services by the subgrantees under subsec-
 tion (a) of this section, the energy
 conservation office shall make payment to
 the subgrantee of five percent (5%) of the
 amount spent per dwelling.".
- Page 4-lines 12 through 17 Delete entirely.
- Page 6-line 1 After "SUBGRANTEE" delete the line entirely
 and insert "IS REGISTERED WITH THE SECRE-
 TARY OF STATE AS A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION;"
- Page 6-lines 2 through 4 Delete entirely. -HICKEY ✓

1982

STATE OF WYOMING

82LSO-150/eng

SENATE FILE NO. 22

Home insulation grants.

Sponsored by: Senator CUNDALL

A BILL

for

1 AN ACT to create W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704; to amend W.S.
2 39-6-701; and to repeal W.S. 39-6-701(a)(iii) relating to
3 home insulation grants for low income, senior citizens and
4 disabled persons; providing for grants and specifying a
5 purpose; providing qualifications and grant application
6 procedure; authorizing subgrantees to perform and contract
7 for home insulation installation; authorizing the governor
8 to promulgate implementing rules and regulations; limiting
9 the amount of grants to \$1,300.00; providing for an appro-
10 priation; providing that funds appropriated to the
11 governor's budget for energy conservation grants shall be

1 administered and expended in accordance with the provi-
2 sions of this act; requiring public notice of a summary of
3 this act; and providing for an effective date.

4 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Wyoming:

5 Section 1. W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704 are created to
6 read:

7 39-6-703. Home insulation grants; purpose; applica-
8 tion; duties of energy conservation office; governor to
9 promulgate rules and regulations; generally.

10 (a) Grants provided by W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704
11 are available to qualified persons for purposes of insu-
12 lating their homes against adverse weather conditions,
13 reducing the burden of rising utility costs and conserving
14 energy resources.

15 (b) Qualified persons shall apply to the county
16 assessor in the county of their residence for home
17 insulation grants, certifying age, residency, disability,
18 if any, marital status and income under oath on forms pre-
19 scribed by the Wyoming energy conservation office. The
20 county assessor shall determine whether a person applying
21 owns a home in the county and certify the names of quali-
22 fied persons to the state energy conservation office.

1 (c) The energy conservation office shall:

2 (i) Maintain contact with subgrantees that
3 agree to provide services under W.S. 39-6-701 through
4 39-6-704;

5 (ii) Certify the names of qualified persons
6 received from the county assessors to a subgrantee in the
7 area in which the person resides;

8 (iii) Upon certification from a subgrantee
9 that work is in compliance with the job specification con-
10 tract, authorize payment to the subgrantee by the state
11 treasurer.

12 (d) The governor in consultation with the energy
13 conservation office may promulgate rules and regulations
14 to implement W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704.

15 39-6-704. Duties of subgrantees; generally; contract
16 limitations.

17 (a) Upon receipt of names of qualified persons from
18 the energy conservation office, a subgrantee agreeing to
19 provide services under this article shall:

20 (i) Inspect the person's home and determine

1 the most cost effective means of adequately insulating it
2 within a maximum cost of one thousand three hundred
3 dollars (\$1,300.00);

4 (ii) Prepare job specifications for installa-
5 tion of such insulation;

6 (iii) Advertise and accept bids for and award
7 and administer contracts for such installation;

8 (iv) Inspect the installation and determine
9 compliance with job specifications, securing signature of
10 resident accepting performance;

11 (v) When the installation complies with job
12 specifications, certify compliance to the energy conser-
13 vation office.

14 (b) In return for services by the subgrantees under
15 subsection (a) of this section, the energy conservation
16 office shall make payment to the subgrantee of five per-
17 cent (5%) of the amount spent per dwelling.

18 Section 2. W.S. 39-6-701 is amended to read:

19 39-6-701. Definitions.

20 (a) As used in ~~this article~~ W.S. 39-6-701 THROUGH

1 39-6-704:

2 (i) "Income" includes wages, receipts from
3 earnings, rents, interest, dividends, annuities, pensions,
4 alimony, support payments, public assistance payments,
5 federal social security payments, veteran's benefits, dis-
6 ability payments, and unemployment compensation;

7 (ii) "INSULATION" MEANS ANY INSULATING DEVICE
8 INCLUDING CAULKING AND WEATHER STRIPPING;

9 (iii) "QUALIFIED PERSON" MEANS A RESIDENT WHO
10 OWNS AND OCCUPIES A HOME AND WHO QUALIFIES FOR A REFUND OF
11 TAXES UNDER W.S. 39-6-702(a);

12 ~~(iii)~~(iv) "Resident" means a person who has
13 been a resident of Wyoming and domiciled within Wyoming
14 for a period of not less than one (1) year and who has not
15 claimed residency elsewhere for any purpose for said one
16 (1) year period immediately preceding the date of applica-
17 tion for a refund under ~~this-article~~ W.S. 39-6-701 THROUGH
18 39-6-704;

19 ~~(iii)--"This-article"--means-W.S.--39-6-701--and~~
20 39-6-702;

21 (v) "SUBGRANTEE" IS REGISTERED WITH THE SECRE-

1 TARY OF STATE AS A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION;

2 ~~(iv)~~(vi) "Totally disabled" means a person
3 nineteen (19) years of age or older whose physical or
4 mental condition permanently prevents the person from per-
5 forming any substantial gainful employment.

6 Section 3. W.S. 39-6-701(a)(iii) is repealed.

7 Section 4. There is appropriated from the general
8 fund one million forty thousand dollars (\$1,040,000.00)
9 and from the Law Income Energy Block Grant, ten percent
10 (10%) or one million forty thousand dollars
11 (\$1,040,000.00) or as much thereof as may be necessary to
12 carry out the provisions of this act.

13 Section 5. All funds appropriated to the governor's
14 budget for energy conservation grants shall be adminis-
15 tered and expended in accordance with the terms and provi-
16 sions of this act.

17 Section 6. Each county assessor shall promptly pub-
18 lish in a newspaper of general circulation in the county a
19 notice to be furnished immediately by the energy conser-
20 vation office, summarizing W.S. 39-6-703 and 39-6-704.

THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WYOMING

House of Representatives

Cheyenne, February 25, 1982

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee No. ² on APPROPRIATIONS
 to whom was referred SF No. 22 (Engrossed Copy)

respectfully reports same back to the House with the recommendation that it DO PASS with
 the following amendments:

- Page 1 line 8 Delete "implementing".
 Page 1 line 11 ~~After "for" Delete~~ "energy conservation grants" and insert
 "weatherization subgrantees".
 Page 3 line 17 After "receipt of" insert "the".
 Page 4 line 5 After "insulation" insert "in accordance with applicable building
 codes and standards".
 Page 4 line 7 Delete ";" and insert "., insert "Bids shall not be accepted
 from the subgrantee or any of its employees or agents;".
 Page 4 line 9 After "securing" insert "the"; after "of" insert "the".
 Page 5 line 11 After "W.S. 39-6-702(a)" insert "OR ONE OF LESSER AGE WHO
 RENTS OR OWNS A DWELLING, RESIDES THEREIN, AND WHO FALLS
 WITHIN 125% OF THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET (OMB)
 POVERTY INCOME GUIDELINES WITH PREFERENCE TO THE DISABLED
 AND/OR CITIZEN OVER 65 YEARS OF AGE".
 Page 5 line 17 After "for" insert "WEATHERIZATION ASSISTANCE OR".
 Page 5 line 21 After "IS" insert "A NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION".
 Page 6 line 1 After "STATE" delete the remainder of the line to the semicolon.
 Page 6 line 7 After "appropriated" insert "to the energy conservation office".
 Page 6 line 9 Delete "from" and insert "up to ten percent (10%) of"; delete
 "Law" and insert "Low"; delete "ten percent".
 Page 6 line 10 Delete line entirely. ^{after}
 Page 6 line 11 Delete to ^{through} "necessary".
 Page 6 line 12 After "act" insert ", to supplement funds appropriated for
 weatherization subgrantees in the governor's budget".
 Page 6 line 14 ~~After "for" Delete~~ "energy conservation grants" and insert
 "weatherization subgrantees".
 Page 6 line 17 Delete "promptly".
 Page 6 line 19 Delete "immediately".
 Page 7 line 1 After "1982" insert ", except the appropriation shall be
 effective July 1, 1982".

AYES: BUDD, JONES, LARSON, SIMPSON, SIDI

EXCUSED: URBIGKIT

August A. Sidi
 JACK SIDI

Chairman *SW*

SF22SS1/A

- ✓✓ Page 1-line 4 After "grants" delete the balance of the line.
- ✓ Page 1-line 5 Delete "fund".
- ✓ Page 2-line 4 Delete "payable".
- ✓ Page 2-line 5 Delete "from general fund;".
- ✓ Page 2-line 12 After the period delete the balance of the line.
- ✓ Page 2-line 13 Delete the line entirely.
- ✓ Page 6-line 11 Delete "two" and insert "one"; delete "four hundred" and insert "forty".
- ✓ Page 6-line 12 Delete "(\$2,400,000.00)" and insert "(\$1,040,000.00) and from the Low Income Energy Block Grant, ten percent (10%) or one million forty thousand dollars (\$1,040,000.00)". -GEIS

SF22SS2/A

- ✓ Page 1-line 10 After the semicolon insert "providing that funds appropriated to the governor's budget for energy conservation grants shall be administered and expended in accordance with the provisions of this act;".
- ✓ Page 6-after line 13 Insert the following:

Section 5. All funds appropriated to the governor's budget for ~~energy conservation grants~~ shall be administered and expended in accordance with the terms and provisions of this act.

~~Section 5~~
~~weatherization~~
~~subgrants~~

- ✓ Page 6-line 14 Delete "5" and insert "6".
- ✓ Page 6-line 18 Delete "6" and insert "7".-NORTHROP